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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their strategic report on the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013

The Company forms part of the General Insurance business unit within the Insurance Dwvision of Lloyds Banking Group (“Group™ or
“LBG"), focusing on protecting today for our customers In the aftermath of the October and December storms, our Home Claims teams

have worked hard to ofTer seamless service at a distressing tme for many of our customers

Our strategy to help our customers “Protect Today” 1s geared to meeting the needs of our society by

. Being customer centric,
. Hawving a clear market focus, and
. Leveraging our umque Group advantage

As part of the LBG Insurance Division strategy the Company underwnites General Insurance, including household and domestic all risks
wsurance, creditor msurance, pet insurance, accident and health insurance marketed primarily under the Lloyds Bank (formerly Lloyds
TSB), Bank of Scotland and Halifax brands and sold predominantly through LBG and corporate partnerships  The Company 1s focussed
on mvestmg 1n the growth of its customer base and ensuring policyholder obligations are met at the same time ensuring the company 18
managed to maximise capital efficiency and returns for its shareholder and the LBG Insurance Dhvision To support this, the Company 15
focussed on the following key performance indicators

Result and dividends for the year,

Net insurance premiums,

Claims and loss adjustment expenses,

Combined ratio,

Regulatory capital in excess of internal buffers, and
Liquidity position

Result and dividends for the year
The result of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 1s a profit before tax of £84m (2012 £120m) Thus reflects the run ¢ff of
the creditor book following LBG’s decision to cease selling Payment Protection Insurance n 2010, a reduction 1n home Gross Wntten

Premmums (growth 1n Retail GWP has been offset by a reduction i Direct GWP) and the smpact of the revised terms of trade with the
Retail Bank that came into force on 1st January 2013 Claims and loss adjustment expenses were 1n line wath prior year

Interim dividends of £99m were paid duning the year in respect of 2013 (2012 £32m)

Key performance indicators
Net msurance premums

Net msurance premiums reduced to £526m 1n 20113 (2012 £551m) reflecting the run off of the creditor book and a reduction in home
Gross Wnitten Premiums 1n the Direct business

Claims and loss adjustment expenses

Clamms and loss adjustment expenses are 1n line with prior year (2013 £193m, 2012 £193m) reflecting the run off of the creditor book
offset by the cost of the December 2013 flood event on the home book

Combined ratio

The Company’s combined ratio has mcreased to 86% (2012 81%) reflecting the reduction in the Company’s net premium income and the
impact of revised terms of trade on the home book which came nto force on 1 January 2013

Capiral Resources

The Directors believe that the Company currently has adequate capital resources and wall continue to do so 1n the foreseeable future On a
Pillar | basis the Company’s regulatory surplus in excess of capmal requirements 1s £141m (2012, £159m) The reduction in the
Company’s capital surplus of £18m 1s primarily due to profit after tax for the year of £86m being more than offset by dividends paid of
£99m
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Solvency I

Our business model as a Single Integrated Insurance Business positions us to maxumse the capital benefits from nsk diversification
available under the Prudential Regulation Authonty (“PRA") Individual Capital Assessment Plus (ICA plus) regime and ultimately
Solvency II When Solvency Il 1s fully implemented, 1t 15 expected that the Insurance Division of LBG will be able to recognise the capatal
diversification benefits which will flow from the management of capital and risk within this overall structure The 1mplementation date for
Solvency IT within the European Unton has been deferred unul 1 January 2016, although some transitional measures to demonstrate
preparedness will apply dunng 2015

The Company’s preparations on Solvency Il are conunuing, although the Single Integrated Insurance Business structure will enable the
business to operate effectively within the transitional arrangements that have been proposed The Company has already embedded
Solvency Il 1nto its way of working and takes this into account when considering capital requirements The Company has developed a Risk
Management Framework, with the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (“ORSA”) a central feature to the Company framework

Liquidty

The Company regularly monitors 1ts liquidity position, which tncludes stressed outflows that are based on the mest severe of several
scenanos Company-specific stress scenanos, PRA market-wide scenarios, and PRA market-wide scenarios with Insurance-specific
overlays

Other Sources

The Company also forms part of LBG's Insurance Division The development, performance and position of the Insurance Division are
presented within LBG’s annual report, which does not form part of this report

The Directors consider that the above are the key performance indicators which are appropriate to the principal activity of the Company
These, together with other metrics which cover customer, operational measures and capital, are included 1n the balanced scorecard which 1s
used to measure all aspects of the performance of the business In addition, the Directors are of the opinion that the information contained
in the Company's PRA returns on capital resources and requirements and regular actuanal reports, mn conjunction with the information
presented 1n the financial statements as a whole, provide the management information necessary for the Directors to understand the
development, performance and position of the business of the Company Along with fellow direct and indirect subsidianes of the ultimate
insurance parent undertaking, the Company 1s included 1n the calculation of the Scottish Widows Group capital surplus This 15 calculated
1n accordance with the Insurance Groups Directive, and 1s reperted 1n the LBG annual report

Review of the business

In additien to the progress made against the strategic imitiatives summarised earher there are other areas that are worthy of note and these
are described below

Investment strategy

The Company continues to practice efficient balance sheet management with a focus on investment and hquidity management
opportunities, leveraging wider LBG’s skills and capabilities During 2013 excess hquidity was mvested 1n less lquid asset backed
securities purchased from, or 1ssued by, parties within LBG  All assets were acquired at their fair value Further details on the credit nsk
and fair value measurement of these assets can be found in note 25

Outlook

The Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue 1n business for the foreseeable future and consequently the
going concemn basis continues to be appropriate in preparing the financial statements
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Principal nsks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the Company’s strategy 1s subject to a number of nisks The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Company and the exposure to market, msurance, credit, financial soundness, conduct,
operational and political nsk and uncertainties are set out 1n note 25

In addion, the Company 1s also exposed to financial and prudenual regulatory reporting nisk, i particular the nisk of reputational damage,
financial loss arising from the adoption of mappropnate accounting pehicies, ineffective controls over financial reporting or over prudential
regulatory reporting and financial reporting fraud The financial and nisk management objectives and policies of the Company n respect of
financial and prudential regulatory reporting risk are also set out in note 25

On behalf of the Boagd rectors

G

A M Parsons
Drrector
20 March 2014
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

Lloyds Bank General Insurance Limited (“the Company”) 1s a company limited by shares, dormeiled and incorperated 1n the United
Kingdom The Company’s principal place of business 1s Tredegar Park, Newport, South Wales, NP10 8SB

Principal activities

As part of a group rebrand resulting from the creation of the TSB bank, Lloyds TSB General Insurance Limited changed its name to Lloyds
Bank General Insurance Limited on the 23rd September 2013

The pnincipal activity of the Company 1s to underwrite General Insurance, including household and domestic all nsks insurance, creditor
insurance, pet insurance, accident and health insurance marketed pnimanly under the Lloyds Bank (formerly Lloyds TSB), Bank of
Scotland and Hahfax brands and sold predominantly through the Lloyds Banking Group (““Group” or “LBG™) and corporate partnerships
Al! contracts of insurance are written in the United Kingdom

Results

The result of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 1s a profit before tax of £84m (2012 £120m}

Intenm dividends of £99m were paid duning the year in respect of 2013 (2012 £32m) The Directors do not recommend any further
dividend 1n respect of 2013

Post balance sheet event

In February 2014 a collateralised loan between the Company and Scottish Widows plc was agreed, this will be effective on the 14" March
2014 More detail 15 given in note 30

Directors
The names of the present Directors of the Company are shown on page 3

The following changes 1n Directors have taken place during the year

A M Peck {Resigned 31 May 2013)
D J Walkden {Resigned 1 June 2013)
RLM Wohanka (Appointed 1 June 2013)
C J Thomton {Appointed i June 2013)
V Maru {Appownted 18 June 2013)

Lioyds Barking Group plc has granted to the Directors of the Company a deed of indemnity through deed poll which consttuted
‘quahfying third party indemmity provisions’ for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 The deed was 1n force during the whole of the
financial year and at the date of approval of the financial statements Directors no longer in office but who served on the Board of the
Company at any time 1n the financial year had the benefit of this contract of indemnity during that period of service The indemmity
remains in force for the duration of a Director’s penod of office The deed indemmifies the Directors to the maximum extent permitted by
law The Deed for existing Directors 1s available for mspection at the registered office of Lloyds Banking Group ple In addition, the
Group has 1n place appropriate Directors and Officers Liability Insurance cover which was in place throughout the financial year

Disclosure of information to auditors

In so far as each director 1n office at the date the Directors Report 15 approved 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audut information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information This
confirmation 1s given and shoutd be interpreted mn accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the
financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under
company taw the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period

In prepaning these financial statements, the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and accounting estitmates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenial departures
disclosed and explained 1n the financial statements,

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the company wili continue
1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

Each of the Directors whose names are histed on page 3 confirms that, to the best of their knowledge

the Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of the Company, and

the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 6 and the Directors’ Report on pages 7 and 8 include a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company, together with a descniption of the principal nisks and uncertainties
that 1t faces

On behalf of the Board of ctors

A M Parsons W

Director
20 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LLOYDS BANK GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements

* give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of 1ts profit and cash flows for the year
then ended,

+  have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European

Union, and
¢  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

This opinion 1s to be read 1n the context of what we say below

What we have audited

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, which are prepared by Lloyds Bank General Insurance Limited, comprise
the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes i Equity and the

related notes

The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation comprises applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (JFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

In applying the financial reporting framework, the Directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example n respect of
significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future events

What an aodit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audinng (UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK & Ireland)) An audit
involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient o give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

e  whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately
disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and
the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Accounts to 1dentify matenial mconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to idenufy any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of perforrmng the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or mcoensistenctes we consider the mmplications for our report

Opimon on matters prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opmion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the financial statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations recerved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you 1f, in our opinion

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
adequate accounting records have not been, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us,
or

¢ the financial statements are not 1n agreement wiath the accounting records and retumns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LLOYDS BANK GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
(continued) -

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report if, 1n our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors™ remuneration specified by law
have not been made We have no exceptions to report anising from this responsibihty

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 8, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimnion on the financial statements tn accordance with applicable law and ISAs (UK &
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, mcludimg the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company s members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for ne other purpose We do not, in giving these opions, accept or assume responstbility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our
prier consent 1n wrllmg

Duseet lo__

David Roper (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statnory Auditors
Birmungham

21 March 2014
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R
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Revenue
Gross eamed premums 3 540,904 572,149
Premiums ceded to retnsurers 3 (14,500) (21,101)
Premmums net of remnsurance 526,004 551,048
Net investment income 4 4,247 5,355
Net gains on assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 4,896 9,064
Total revenue 535,147 565,467
Net insurance claims
Claims and loss adjustment costs 6 (192,862) (192,851)
Claims costs recoverable from remsurers 6 1 1
Claims and loss adjustment costs {192,861} (192,850)
Expenses
Expenses for the acquisition of msurance contracts 7 (213,670) (218,461)
Expenses for admimistration 7 {44,256) (34,066)
(257,926) (252,527)
Total expenses (450,787) (445,377
Profit before tax 84,360 120,090
Taxation credit / (charge) 9 1,173 (26,991)
Profit for the year 85,533 93,699

There are no 1tems of comprehensive income which have not already been presented 1n armving at the profit for the year Accordingly,
the profit for the year 1s the same as total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 15 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
ASSETS
Intangible insurance assets 10 56,534 61411
Reinsurance assets 11 6,299 10,352
Prepayments 12 1 116
Financial assets
Loans and receivables 13 237,845 243,316
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 14 487,584 467,990
Cash and cash equivalents 15 67,591 128,921
Total assets 855,854 912,106
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves atirnbutable to the Company’s equity shareholder
Share capital 16 61,700 61,700
Retained eamings 245,621 259,088
Total equity 307,321 320,788
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 17 406,128 425,895
Deferred tax liabilities 18 18,245 20,514
Current tax payables 18 18,796 73,133
Provisions for other hallities and charges 19 6,349 6,604
Accruals 20 481 443
Financial habihities
Other financial liabihties 21 98,534 64,729
Total habilities 548,533 591,318
Total habilities and equity 855,854 912,106

The notes on pages 15 to 48 form an tntegral part of these financial statements

Approved by the Board 20, March 2014

A M Parsons
Director

12
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
A

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 84,360 120,090
Adjusted for
Investment income and net fair value gains on assets held at fair value through profit or loss (5,143) (14,419)
Net decrease i operating assets and habilities 22 28,338 69,975
Taxation paid (55,434) -
Net cash flows from operating activifies 48,121 175,646
Cash flows from 1nvesting activities
Net (addition) of investments at fair value through profit or loss (14,646) (73,024)
Interest received 507 3,048
Dividend and other income recerved 3,718 2,205
Net cash flows from investing activities (10,421} (67,771)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dhividends paid 23 {99,000) (32,000)
Net cash flows from financing activities {99,000) (32,000)
Net {(decrease)/increase 1n cash and cash equivalents (61,300) 75,875
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15 128,891 53,016
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 67,591 128,891

The notes on pages 15 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDFD 31 DECEMBER 2013

Issued share Retained Total equity
captal earnings

Notes £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 January 2012 61,700 197,989 259,689
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year - 93,099 93,099
Dividends paid 23 - (32,000) (32,000)
Balance at 31 December 2012 61,700 255,088 320,788
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year 85,533 85,533
Drvidends paid 23 (99,000) (99,000)
Balance at 31 December 2313 61,700 245,621 307,321

Not ali of the above amounts can be distributed to the equity holder since the Company is required to meet regulatory capital requirements

Further details are given in note 25

The notes on pages 15 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATFMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1.

(a)

()

Accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements, which have been consistently apphed to all
penods presented in these financial statements unless stated otherwise, are set out below

Basis of presentation
The financial statements have been prepared

(1) m accordance with the International Accounting Standards (“IASs™) and International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs"} 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the Standards and Interpretations (“SICs™) and
Internattonal Financial Reporting Interpretations (“IFRICs™) i1ssued by nts Intermatonal Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee, as endorsed by the EU,

(2) 1 accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under [FRSs,

(3} under the histonical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and financial habilities at
fair value through profit or loss, as set out 1n the relevant accounting policies

The Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue in business for the foresceable future
Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis

In accordance with 1AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, assets and habilities in the balance sheet are presented in
accordance with management’s esttmated order of hquidity Analysis of the assets and lhiabilities of the Company into
amounts expected to be recerved or settled within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after
the reporting date {non-current) 1s presented in the notes

Under section 400 of the Companies Act {CA 2006 s40Q) the Company 1s not required to undertake the consolidation of
subsidianies The Company forms part of LBG, which prepares a group set of consolidation financial statements under IFRS

Standards and interpretations effective in 2013

A number of standards, amendments to and interpretations of published standards which have the potential to impact on the
Company’s financial statements have been 1ssued and are mandatory for accounting penieds beginming on or after 1 January
2013 Their relevance to the Company’s financial statements 15 assessed at note 28

Details of standards and interpretations n 1ssue but which have not been adopted early are set out at note 28
Financial assets and financial habilities

Management deterrmines the classification of 1ts financial assets and financial habilities at initial recognition Management’s
polictes for the recogmtion of specific financial assets and financial habilities, as 1dentified on the balance sheet, are set out
under the relevant accounting policies

Financial assets are derecogmised when the nghts to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Company has transferred substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership Financial habilities are derecognised only
when the obligation specified 1n the contract 1s discharged, cancelled or expires

All financial assets and financial habuities are designated at fair value through profit or loss, with the exception of certain
loans and receivables and other financtal habuities which are stated at amortised cost (as described in pohicies (h) and (q)
respectively) The classification depends on the purpose for which financial assets and financial habilities were acquired

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or toss at inception are managed and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis Information on these financial assets 15 provided nternally on a fair value basis to the Company’s key
management The Company’s investment strategy 1s to nvest 1 equity and debt secunities and cash, and to evaluate the
Company’s investments with reference to their fawr values

15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2013

(¢}

Fair value methodology

All assets and habihities carned at fair value, or for which a fair value measurement is disclosed, are categorised nto a “fair
value hierarchy” as follows

(1) Level 1

Valued using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 1dentical assets and liabilities to those being valued An active
market 15 one in which similar arm’s length transactions i the instrument occur with both sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pnicing nformation on an ongeing basis  Examples include listed equities, listed debt securinies, Open Ended
Investment Compamies (“OEICs”) and umt trusts traded 1n active markets and exchange traded denvatives such as futures

(1) Level 2

Valued using mputs other than quoted pnices mcluded within Level | that are observable for the asset or hability, erther
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from pnices) If the asset or liability has a specified {(contractual) term, a Level 2 input
must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or hlability Level 2 inputs include the following

¢  Quoted prices for similar (but not identical) instruments 1n active markets,

s  Quoted prices for identical or simular instruments mn markets that are not active, where prices are not current, or price
quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers,

» Inputs other than quoted pnces that are observable for the mstrument (for example, interest rates and yield curves
observable at cornmonly quoted intervals and default rates),

* Inputs that are dertved principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means

Examples of these are securities measured using discounted cash flow models based on hsted debt or equity securities 1n a
market that 15 mactive

(1i1) Level 3

Valued using inputs for the asset or liability that include significant unobservable inputs (inputs not based on observable
market data) Unobservable inputs may have been used to measure fair value where observable inputs are not available This
approach allows for situations 1 which there 1s Little, 1f any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date
(or market information for the mputs to any valuation models) Unobservable inputs reflect the assumptions the Company
considers that market participants would use 1n pricing the asset or hability, for example private equity mvestments held by the
Company

Where estimates are used, these are based on a combination of independent third-party evidence and intemally developed
models, calibrated to market observable data where possible

Further analysis of the Company’s mstruments held at fair value 1s set out at note 25

The Company’s management, through a fair value pricing commuttee, review information on the fair value of the Company’s
financial assets and financial hiabihities and the sensitivities to these values on a regular basis

No assets are classified as held-to-matunty or available-for-sale No habilities are classified as held for trading

Transaction costs icidental to the acquisition of a financial asset are expensed through the statement of comprehensive
ncome, within net gams and losses on assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial habihties are offset and the net amount reported m the balance sheet only when there 1s a legally
enforceable nght to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or to reahise the asset and
settle the hability simultanecusly

Transfers between different levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the next reporting date after the
change in circumstances that caused the transfer

16
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(d)

(®

®

Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recogmtion
Premuum income

Premums received n respect of all general msurance contracts are recogmsed as revenue proportionally over the period of
coverage Written premums, gross of commission payable to intermediaries, comprise the premiums on contracts entered into
in a financial year, regardless of whether such amounts may relate in whole or 1n part to a later financial year, exclusive of
insurance premium tax and duties levied on premuums The amount of msurance prermum tax due by the Company which has
not been paid over to Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs (HMRC) as at the balance sheet date 15 included as a lrability under
the heading “Other financial liabilities”

Premmums wriiten mclude adjustments for any differences between unearned premiums recorded in prior years and amounts
ultimately recetved  Qutward remnsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting peniod as the premmums for the

inwards msurance business

Premmums collected by intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed based on estimates from underwniting or past
experience, and are included in premiums wntten

Investment 1ncome

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial mstruments 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as 1t
accrues, within mvestment income

Dividends recervable 1n respect of histed shares and collective mvestment vehicles are recogmised on the date that these are
quoted ex-dividend, other dividend imncome 1s recognised when received  All dividends recerved are recogmsed through the
statement of comprehensive mcotne, within mvestment income

Net gains and losses on assets at fair value through profit or loss

Net gamns and losses on assets held at fair value through profit or loss include both realised and unrealised gans and losses
Movements are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive mcome 1n the year in which they anse

Expense recognition

Claims and loss adjustment expenses

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive ncome as incurred based on the
estimated hability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties where the contract holders are liable They
include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and anse from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date even
if they have not yet been reported to the Company

Operating expenses

Commussions and other acquisition costs are recogmsed through the statement of comprehensive income, within expenses for
the acqusition of mmsurance contracts Commussion and other acqusition costs that vary with and are directly related to

securing new contracts and renewing existing contracts are deferred as set out m policy (f)

Other operating expenses are recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income as mcurred, within expenses for
administration

Intangible insurance assets

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Comnussions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are directly related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an ntangible asset (DAC), where they can be identified separately and measured rehably

and 1t 15 probable that they will be recovered All other costs are recognised as expenses when mcurred The DAC 15
subsequently amortised 1n hine with eamed premiums
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Accounting policies {continued)

Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Company with remnsurers under which the Company 1s compensated for losses on one or more
contracts 1ssued by the Company and that meet the classification requirement for insurance contracts above are classified as
reinsurance contracts held Insurance contracts entered nto by the Company under which the contract holder 1s another
msurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with msurance contracts

The benefits to which the Company 1s entitled under 1its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets
These assets consist of short-term balances due from remsurers as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the
expected claims and benefits ansing under the related remnsurance contracts Amounts recoverable from or due to remsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the remnsured insurance contracts and 1n accordance with the
terms of each remsurance contract Reinsurance habilities are pnimarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense when due

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis  If there 15 objective evidence that the
remsurance asset 1s impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to 1ts recoverable amount
and recogmises that impairment loss n the statement of comprehensive income for the year The Company gathers the
objective evidence that a remsurance asset 1s impaired using the same process adopted for loans and receivables The
impairment loss 1s also calculated following the same method used for these financial assets These processes are descnibed
m policy (k)

Loans and recervables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active
market and that are not designated as fair value through profit or loss at imitial recognition

Loans and recervables are mitially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, subject to impairment In practice the carrying value of these balances equates to the fair vatue
due to the short-term nature of the amounts included within loans and receivables

A charge for impairment n respect of loans and receivables would be made in the statement of comprehensive income when
there 1s objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to their onginal terms  The
impairment charge would be recognised through of the statement of comprehensive income within operating expenses
Recervables ansing from insurance contracts are also classified 1n this category and are reviewed for impairment as part of the
1mpairment review of loans and receivables

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Investments at fair value through profit or loss comprnise debt and equity securities
Classification

A financial asset 1s classified in this category at inception if acquired pnncipally for the purpose of selling 1n the short-term, 1f
1t forms part of a portfoho of financial assets in which there 1s evidence of short-term profit-taking, or if designated as such

Recogmition

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, 1¢ the date the Company commuts to purchase the
asset from, or dehver the asset to, the counterparty Investments are mitially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given, and are subsequently remeasured at fair value

Measurement

The fair values of investments are based on current bid pnices  If the market for a financial asset 1s not active, and also for
unhisted secunties, the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques  These include the use of similar arm’s
length transactions and reference to other instruments that are substanuially the same, making maximum use of market mputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs
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Accounting policies (continuved)
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

For quoted debt secunity nvestments, bid prices at the final pricing point on the reporting date are obtamned from index
providers who obtain prices from a number of leading brokers, investment banks and market makers Where no mdependent
price 1s available, a valuation technique 15 used to determine fair value The techmique uses a spread over a comparable term
gilt as the best estimate of fair value Spreads are calculated by reference to the wider market movement n credit spreads, the
way 1n which the secunity 15 structured, other assets 1ssued by the 1ssuer or other assets with similar characteristics

For corporate bonds, the Company’s management perform a companson of information received from the index provider
used against other available price sources on a monthly basis to ensure that prices can be supported by market data

The Company holds mvestments 1n structured entities ansing from mvestments 1n unlisted collective mnvestment schemes
The farr value of holdings i unlhisted collective mnvestment schemes 15 determined by using the mark to market values of the
individual underlying holdings of the schemes

In addition to the measurement policies, investment asset prices are reviewed weekly to 1dentify those assets where the price
has not moved for at least s1x days This review provides an 1nitial indication that the market for each identified asset may be
mactive These assets are then reviewed by management who may 1dentify an alternative price source for assets which in their
view are still actively traded On conclusion that a particular asset 15 1lliquid, management will identify an altemative
valuation techmque by deciding whether an appropriate price can be obtained from a recognised independent broker Where
this 15 the case, the broker will be approved as a price source for the asset A price will then be obtained from the broker on a
monthly basis A review of all 1lliqud assets and prices obtained or calculated 15 conducted by the Fair Value Pricing
Commuttee on a monthly basis

In order to ensure that a fair value 1s recognised for unquoted or ilhquid debt secunities, the primary price source 15 an
external broker valuation If available, a further external broker valuation 1s sought as a secondary valuation source 1n order
to validate the primary source A formal review is then carried out which challenges the external valuation and includes
consideration of the impact of any relevant movements 1n underlying vaniables such as

underlying movetnents in the relevant markets, for example credit spreads,

how current transactions are being priced in the market,

how the secunty 1s structured, and

any supporting quantitative analysis as appropriate, for example with reference to Bloomberg or internal models

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash n hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with oniginal maturities of three months or less, bank overdrafts where there 1s a nght of offset and accrued interest

Impairment
Financial assets

The carrying value of all financtal assets held at amortised cost 1s reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable The identification of umpairment and the determination of
recoverable amounts 15 an nherently uncertain process nvolving various assumptions and factors, including the financial
condition of the counterparty, expected future cash flows, observable farr prices and expected net selling prices An
impairment loss 15 recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value 1n use
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Accounting policies (continued)
Tmparment (continued)
Non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe are not subject to depreciauon or amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment Asscts that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An mmpairment loss 15 recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts estimated recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows

If there 15 objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss 1s charged to the relevant line 1n the
statement of comprehensive income m the year in which 1t occurs Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

Impairment process

Objective evidence that an asset or group of assets 1s imparred ncludes observable data that comes to the attention of the

Company about the following events

(1) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor,

(1) a breach of contract,

(1)  the disappearance of an active market for that asset because of financial difficultes, or

(1v)  observable data indicating that there 1s 2 measurable decrease 1n the estimated future cash flow from a group of assets
since the imitial recognition of those assets, even where the decrease cannot yet be 1dentified with the individual assets
of the Company, including
- adverse changes 1n the payment status of 1ssuers or debtors, or
- national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the Company

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for assets that are individually
sigmificant  [f the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed asset,
whether sigmficant or not, it mcludes the asset in a group of assets with simlar credit nsk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment  Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the i1ssuer’s ability to pay all amounts due under the contractual terms of the debt mstrument
being evaluated Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 1s or continues to be
recognised are not included 1n a collective assessment of impairment

Taxes

Tax on the profit or loss for the year 1s recogmsed n the statement of comprehensive income within taxation and compnises
current and deferred tax

Current tax

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates and legislabon enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, together with adjustments to estumates made i prior years

Deferred income tax

Deferred mcome tax 15 provided in full, using the lability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabihties and their carrying amounts for finaneial reporting purposes at the reporting date However, 1f the deferred
income tax anses from mitial recognition of an asset or habihity n a transaction other than a business combination that, at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, 1t 1s not accounted for The amount of deferred
tax provided 15 based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carmrying amount of assets and habilines,
using tax rates and legislation enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred income tax assets are only recogmsed to the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable profits will be available
agamst which the temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utihised

The carrying amount of deferred mcome tax assets 18 reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred mcome tax asset to be
utihsed Deferred tax assets and habilities held are undiscounted
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Accounting policies (continued)

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there 15 no obligation to transfer cash or other assets

Dhvidend distribution

Dhvidend distribution to the Company’s equity sharcholder 1s recognised 1n equity in the year in which the dividend 1s paid
Insurance contracts

The Company 1ssues msurance contracts, which transfer significant insurance nsk The Company defines as sigmficant
msurance nisk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more
than the benefits payable if the insured event were not to occur Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract,
1t remains an msurance contract for the remainder of 1ts lifetime, even if the insurance nsk reduces significantly over time

Recognmition and measurement

All surance contracts 1ssued by the Company are short-term contracts categorised as houschold and domestic all risks,
creditor, accident and health, and pet

Household and domestic all nisks msurance contracts mamnly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to
their properties and their contents

Creditor contracts maimnly compensate the Company’s customers against the cost to the insured of sustaining njury, suffering
sickness or infirmity, suffering loss of income due to causes that may or may not be specified wn the contract, where the
benefits payable under the contract relate to loans, credit card balances or other debts (excluding mortgage indemmty)

Accident and health insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers with fixed pecumary benefits against
costs of the insured requiring health care for sickness, infirmity or injunies sustained Accident and health insurance nsks are
not considered to be a matenal part of the Company’s insurance business

Pet insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers against the cost to the insured of their pet sustaining an
injury or suffening sickness or infirmity and incurring veterinary fees It also provides compensation for theft or death of the
animal

For all these contracts, the portion of premium recerved on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired nisks at the balance
sheet date 1s reported as the unearned premium reserve

The Company does not discount its liabilittes for unpaid claims

The provision for outstanding claims represents the ultimate cost of settling all claims, including direct and indirect claims
settlement costs, ansing from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date  This provision comprises an amount for
the cost of claims notified but not settled and for claims incurred but not yet reported

The provision for claims incurred but not reported at the date of the balance sheet and the related claims settlement expenses
together with the anticipated remsurance and other recoveries, 15 made on the basis of the best information currently
available, having regard, m particular, to past claims experience Subsequent information and events may resuit in the
ultimate liabilities being more than, or less than, the amount provided for the estimated net liabilinies at a particular balance
sheet date The estimates made are regularly reviewed in the hght of subsequent information and any resulting adjustments
are reflected 1n the earnings of the year in which the adjustments are made

Provisions for other habilities and charges

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when 1t
15 probable that the obligation will result in an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a rehable estimate of
the amount of the oblhigation can be made If the effect 15 material, provisions are determuned by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the ume value of money and, where appropnate,
the risks specific to the hability

The Company recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be denived from contracts are less
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contracts
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Accounting policies (continued)
Provisions for other habihities and charges (continued)

Contingent habiliues are possible obligations whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those
present obhgations where the outflows of resources are uncertain or cannot be measured reliably Contingent Liabihues are
not recognised 1n the financial statemnents but are disclosed unless the hkelthood of possible obligations arising 1s remote

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance contract liabilites, net
of retated DAC In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handling and policy
administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities, are used Any deficiency 1s
mmmedately charged to the statement of comprehensive mcome, imtially by wnung off DAC and subsequently by
establishing a provision for losses ansing from the hability adequacy tests

Other financral liabilities

Other financial habilities are iitally recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost In practice, the carrymg values of these balances equates to the fair value due to the short-term
nature of the amounts included within other financial habilities

Cntical accounting estimates and Judgements 1in applying accounting policies

The Company’s management makes estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities
Estimates and judgments are continvally evaluated and based on historical expenience and other factors, ncluding
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised 1n the period m which the estimate 1s revised and 1n any future penods affected

Outstanding claims

The estimatten of the ultimate Lability ansing from c¢laims made under insurance contracts 1s the Company’s most cntical
accounting estimate There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered 1n the estimate of the hability that
the Company will vlumately pay for such claims

In particular, household and domestic all nisks msurance pohcies are exposed to claims for subsidence The Company
subscribes to the Association of British Insurers (ABI) Subsidence “Change of Insurer” Claimms Agreement which places an
obligation upon 1t to deal with subsidence claims

Estirnation of the ultimate cost of subsidence claims 1s complex It 1s difficult to know the incurred date of a subsidence
claim, indeed the claim may have been incurred over a period of time rather than on cne particular day Because of this,
subsidence figures cannot reliably be split by accident month  Significant factors that affect the trends that influence
subsidence performance stem mainly from the impact of the much drier weather conditions, tree root activity, the upturn in
the housing market and the additional extensive press publicity generating anxiety and overreactions to mmor crackimg Due
to this uncertainty, 1t 15 not possible to determine the future development of subsidence claims with the same degree of
rehability as with other types of claim

Where there 15 nsufficient information to determine the required provision, statistical techniques are used which take into
account the cost of claims that have recently been settled and make assumptions about the future development of the
outstanding cases Sumlar statistical techniques are used to determine a provision for claims incurred but not reported at the
balance sheet date

Unemployment claims during the year have continued to fall from thewr peak in 2009, though still remain marginally higher
than prior to the recession and reporting and payment patterns have been disrupted by this, by process changes and by the
creditor book now i run-off The prevailing economic conditions are also expected to continue to produce a secondary,
though smaller impact within sickness claims The normal approach 1s to use past data to denive claims costs, but 1n the past
few years the potential for patterns changing has been recognised and appropriate adjustments have been made as detailed tn
note 25

While management believes that the Lialnlity carried at year end 1s adequate, the application of statistical techmiques requires
significant judgment An increase of 10% 1n the cost of total claims would result 1n the recognition of an additional cost of
£13 800m net of reinsurance (2012 £13 417m) Simlarly, an increase of 10% 1n the number of all claims would result in the
recognition of an addittonal cost of £12 522m net of rensurance (2012 £14 711m) A 5% mncrease in the mflation rate of
claims would result in the recogmition of an additional cost of £6 261m net of reinsurance (2012 £5 938m)
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3 Premiums net of reinsurance
2013 2012
£000 £000
Short-term insurance contracts
- premuums recewvable (note 17) 526,843 562,097
- change 1n uneamed premium reserve 14,061 10,052
Total gross earned prermums (note 17} 540,904 572,149
Short-term remsurance contracts
- premiums payable {10,978) (18,383)
- change 1n uneamed premium reserve (3,922) (2,718)
Total premums ceded to remnsurers {14,900) (21,101)
Total premuums net of reinsurance 526,004 551,048
4. Net investment 1ncome
2013 2012
£000 £000
Net income on investments designated at fair value through profit or loss 3,770 4,623
Other mnterest income 477 732
Total 4,247 5,355
Interest income of £2 299m (2012 £1 037m) and dividend income of £1 487m (2012 £1 280m) on assets held at fair value
through profit or loss have been reclassified to net investment mcome from net gains on assets at fair value through profit or
loss This 1s to align with other Group entities and provide a clearer presentation 2012 values have been restated
5. Net gains on assets at fair value through profit or loss
2013 2012
£000 £000
Net gains on assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,896 9,064
Total 4,896 9,064
Interest ncome of £2 299m (2012 £1 037m) and dividend 1income of £1 487m (2012 £1 280m) on assets held at fair value
through profit or loss have been reclassified to net investment income from net gans on assets at fair value through profit or
loss This 1s to align wath other Group entities and provide a clearer presentation 2012 values have been restated
6. Claims and loss adjustment expenses

2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £400 £000

Gross  Remnsurance Net Gross  Rensurance Net
Current year claims and loss adjustment
costs (note 17) 214,975 - 214975 225,922 - 225922
Movement 1n costs of prior year claims and
loss adjustment costs (note 17) (16,023) (1) (16,024) (41,872} (1) (41,873)
Movement 1n the expected cost of claims for
unexpired risks {note 17} (6,090) - (6,090) 8,801 - 8,801
Total ¢claims and loss adjustment costs 192,862 (1) 192,861 192,851 {1) 192,850
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7 Operating expenses
2013 2012
£000 £000
Fees and comrmssions payable 176,750 178,717
Acquisitton expenses 32,044 30,541
Change n gross deferred acquisition costs 4,876 9,203
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 213,670 218,461
Expenses for administration 44256 34,066
Total 257,926 252,527
The administration of the Company 1s undertaken by another group company A recharge 1s levied from this undertaking to the
Company n respect of those costs incurred on behalf of the Company, although there are some operating expenses which are
incurred directly by the company In 2013 operating expenses recharged to the Company were £79 980m (2012 £84 283m)
[n 2013 claims handling expenses of £37 730m (2012 £34 800m) were allocated to insurance claims costs
The operating expenses disclosure has been aligned to disclose costs n a consistent manner with other group compames This
represents a change to 2012, when operating expenses were analysed by the company
The Company had no direct employees duning the year (2012 mil) Employee costs, including pension costs and share-based
payment costs, are included in the recharge noted above
8 Auditors’ remuneration
2013 2012
£000 £000
Audit fees
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements 239 187
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and 1ts associates for other services
Non-audit services pursuant to regulation 28 28
Total 267 215
Audit fees for 2013 and 2012 were borne by another company within the group and recharged to the Company
9. Taxation Charge
(a) Current year tax (credit) / charge
2013 2012
£000 £000
L R
Current tax:
UK corporation tax 18,796 27915
Adjustments in respect of prior years (17,699) 2)
Total current tax 1,097 27,913
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax credit (note 18) (2,270) (922)
Total deferred tax (2,270) (922)
Total income tax (credit) / charge for the year (1,173) 26,991
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9 Taxation Charge (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of tax charge
2013 2012
£000 £000
Profit before tax 84,360 120,090
Tax charge at effective UK corporation tax rate of 23 25% (2012: 24.5%) 19,614 29,423
Effects of
Non-taxable income (346) (313)
Reduction 1n deferred tax rate to 20% (2012 23%) (2,742) (1,767
Adjustments in respect of prior years (17,699) -
Additional tax deduction on loans acquired under group continuity rules - (352)
Total (1,173) 26,991
The charge for income taxation on the profit for the year 1s based on an effective United Kingdom corporation taxation rate
of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) as the standard corporation taxation rate changed from 24% 10 23% effective 1 Apnl 2013
The effective tax rate for the year1s -1 4% (2012 22 5%)
Adjustments m respect of prior years includes £17 699m unhsation of tax losses from a fellow group subsidiary for mil
payment
The Finance Act 2012, which was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012, included legislation to reduce the main rate of
corporation tax from 24 per cent to 23 per cent wath effect from 1 Apnl 2013 In addition, the Finance Act 2013, which was
substantively enacted on 2 July 2013, included legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax to 21 per cent with effect
from 1 Apnl 2014 and 20 per cent wath effect from 1 Aprit 2015 The change in the main rate of corporation tax from 23 per
cent to 20 per cent has resulted 1n a reduction 1n the Company's net deferred tax Lhability at 31 December 2013 of £2 742m
10 Intangible insurance assets
Deferred acquisition costs 2013 2012
£000 £000
At 1 January 61,411 70,614
Additions 208,793 209,258
Amortisation through statement of comprehensive income (213,670) (218.461)
At 31 December 56,534 61,411
Of the above total £0 786m (2012 £0 173m) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date
11 Reinsurance assets
2013 2012
£000 £000
Rensurers’ uneamed premium {note 17) 5,815 9,737
Reinsurers’ share of claims reserves (note 17} 484 615
Reinsurance assets 6,299 10,352

Of the above £0 135m (2012 £0 172) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year from the reporting date

All of the above amounts relate to houschold and domestic all nsks contracts of insurance The Reinsurers’ share of claims

reserves relates to creditor insurance

25




LLOYDS BANK GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED (204373) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 213

12

13.

14,

Prepay ments

2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts relating to trading balances 1 116
Total i 116

The above total 1s all expected to be recovered within one year
In 2013 prepayments of £0 001m (2012 £0 | 16m) have been reclassified as a separate hine item on the balance sheet to align
with other group entities for the purpose of clearer presentation Prepayments were previously reported within loans and

receivables See note 13

Loans and receivables

2013 2012
£000 £000
Receivables ansing from insurance and remsurance contracts
- due from contract holders 222 833 228,371
- due from related parties (note 27) 15,012 14,945
Total leans and receivables 237,845 243,316

All loans and recetvables are expected to be recovered less than one year after the reporting date

As at 31 December 2013 overdue loans and receivables anising from msurance contracts of £1 429m were provided for in full
(2012 £0705m)

In 2013 prepayments of £0 001m (2012 £0 116m) have been reclassified as a separate line item on the balance sheet to align
with other group entities for the purpose of clearer presentation Prepayments were previously reported within loans and

receivables See note 12

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

2013 2012

£000 £000

Collective Investment Schemes — unhsted 326,683 289,529
Debt secunties — unhsted 160,901 178,461
Total financial investments at faur value through profit or loss 487,584 467,990

Of the above total £160 901m (2012 £178 461m) 1s expected to be receovered more than one year after the reporting date
Interests in unconsohdated structured entities

Included within investments at farr value through profit or loss and cash and cash equivalents are investments n
unconsohdated structured entities of £392 543m ansing from nvestments 1n collective investment schemes

The collective mvestment schemes are pnmanly financed by mvestments from investors 10 the schemes The mvestments are
carried at fair value and the Company’s maximum exposure te loss 1s equal to the carrying value of the mvestment However,
nvestments n collective investment schemes are primarily held to match insurance habilities and the nsk from a change i the
value of the Company’s investment 1s not considered to be sigmficant due to the short-term nature of the investments and
msurance habilities

At 31 December 2013, the total net assets of unconschdated collective mnvestment schemes in which the Company held a
beneficial mterest was £17,931 807m  Durning the year the Company has not provided any non-contractual financial or other
support to these unconsolidated collective investment schemes

LBG’s asset management bustnesses sponsors a range of collective investment schemes where 1t acts as the decision maker over
the nvestment activities and markets the funds under one of LBG’s brands The Company does not earn any fees from the
management of the investments of these funds The carrying value of assets transferred to these funds dunng the year was £mil
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17.

Cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012

£000 £000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 1,731 69,321
Global Liqudity Fund 65,860 59,570
Total cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes 67,591 128,891
Accrued interest - 30
Total cash and cash equivalents 67,591 128,921

The Global Liquidity Fund 1s an unlisted collective investment scheme reported within cash and cash equivalents due to the
short term, lmighly liguid nature of the underlying investments in the scheme

Share capital
2013 2012
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary share capital
At 1 January and 31 December
Issued and fully paid — 61 7m shares of £1 each 61,700 61,700
Total 61,700 61,700

The total authonsed number of ordinary shares 1s 65 661 mulhon (2012 65 661muillion) with a norminal value of £1 each
The ordinary shares of £1 each carry the right to receive dividends proposed by the Directors and the right to vote at general
meetings Upon winding up, the ordinary shares carry the right to a return of capital together with any surplus in retained

earmings or less any accumulated deficits

Insurance contracts

2013 2012
£000 - £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross Recoverable Net Gross Recoverable Net
from remsurers front
remnsurers
Short-term insurance contracts:
Claims reported & loss 133,001 (484) 132,517 128,392 (615) 127,777
adjustment costs
Claims incurred but not 15115 - 15,115 19,340 - 19,340
reported
Unexpired nsk reserve 5,111 - 5,111 11,201 - 11,201
Unearned premiums 252901 {5,815) 247,085 266,962 {9,737) 257,225
Total insurance habihties 406,128 (6,299) 399,829 425,895 10,352 415,543

Of the above total £34 670m (2012 £31 720m) 1s expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date
The gross claims reported, claims expenses habihities and hability for claims incurred but not reported are net of expected
recoveries from salvage and subrogauon The amounts for salvage and subrogauon at the end of 2013 and 2012 are not

material

The unexpired risk reserve includes £3 660m (2012 £8 759m) 1n respect of the pet nsurance business
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Insurance contracts {continued)
Movements 1n insurance liabilihies and reinsurance assets

(a) Claims and loss adjustment expenses

2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Gross Remsurance Net Gross Remsurance Net
Notified claims 128,392 (615) 127,777 143,240 (1,360) 141,874
Incurred but not reported 19,340 19,340 29,930 - 29,930
Total at beginming of year 147,732 (615) 147,117 173,170 (1,366) 171,804
Cash pard for claims settied
1n the year (198,568) 131 (198,437) (209.488) 752 (208,736)
Increase 1 habihties
- ansing from current year
claims (note 6) 214,975 - 214,975 225,922 - 225,922
- anising from prior year
claims (note 6) (16,023) - (16,023) (41,872) (H {41,873
Total at end of year 148,116 (484) 147,632 147,732 (615) 147,117
Notified claums 133,001 (484) 132,517 128,392 (615) 127,777
Incurred but not reported 15,115 15,115 19,340 - 19,340
Total at end of year 148,116 (484) 147,632 147,732 (615) 147,117

There has been no significant change year on year n the assumptions and methodologies used for setting the best estimate
reserves, other than the specific adjusiments made to creditor reserves to allow for the effect of economic conditions on
development patterns as described 1n note 25

(b) Uneamed premums and unexpired short-term insurance nsks

2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Gross Remsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
Unearned premiums
At 1 January 266,962 (9,737) 257,225 277,014 (12,455) 264,559
Increase in the year
(note 3) 526,843 (10,978) 515,865 562,097 (18,383) 543,714
Release n the year
(note 3) (540,904) 14,900 (526,004) (572,149) 21,101 (551,048)
At 31 December 252,901 (5,815) 247,086 266,962 (9,737) 257,225
Unexpired risk reserve
At 1 January 11,201 - 11,201 2,400 - 2,400
Increase n the year
{note 6) - - - 9,174 - 9,174
Release in the year
(note 6) (6,050) - (6,090} (373) - 373)
At 31 December 5,111 - 5,111 11,201 - 11,201

These provisions represent the hiability for short-term msurance contracts for which the Company’s obligations are not
expired at year-end The unexpired nisk provision relates to creditor and pet pohicies for which the Company expects to pay
claims 1n excess of the related unearned premium proviston
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2013 2012
£000 £000
Current tax payables 18,796 73,133
Deferred tax habilities 18,245 20,514
Total tax habilities 37,041 93,647

Of the deferred tax liabilities in the above table, none 15 expected to be setiled within one year of the reporting date

Recogmised deferred tax

Deferred income tax assets and deferred liabilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable night to offset current tax
assets against current tax habilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority Deferred mcome
tax 1s calculated n full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 20% (2012 23%)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account 15 as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
Deferred tax assets comprise
Accelerated capital allowances - 2
Total deferred tax assets - 2
Deferred tax hiabilities comprise:
CER Provision 18,245 20,514
Total deferred tax habilities 18,245 20,514
Net deferred tax liabilities 18,245 20,514

Deferred mncome tax 1s calculated 1n full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 20% (2012

23%)

The tax (credit) in the income statement relating to each of the above 1tems is as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
CER Provision (2,270) (924)
Total deferred tax (credit) (2,276) (924)

The solvency regulations n the UK require the Group to establish an equalisation reserve to be utihsed against abnormal
future losses ansing 1n certan classes of business The regulations prescribe that the reserve 15 increased every year by an
amount that 1s calculated as a percentage of net prermums written for those classes dunng the financial year These amounts

are deductible expenses for tax purposes The equalisation reserve 1s taxed when released
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20.

Provision for other habilities and charges

2013 2012
Premum FSCS levy Total Premium FSCS levy Total
rebates rebates
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 4,952 1,652 6,604 1,752 826 2,578
Utilised during the year {433) {1,362) (1,795) (7,482) (729} {8,211)
Statement of comprehensive
income charge
- additional provisions 3,811 1,362 5,173 4,952 1,652 6,604
‘f("""’)’““d""' provision (3,343) (290) (3,633) 5,730 (97) 5,633
Tom prior years
At 31 December 4,987 1,362 6,349 4,952 1,652 6,604

All of the above provision (2012 £4 804m) is expected to be utilised within one year of the reporting date
(a) Premium Rebates

In accordance with the ABI Statement of Recommended Practice a provision has been made in respect of premiums that may
be refunded tn the famre but on which the premiums have already been fully earned This esnmate has been based upon prior
expertence and also includes an amount 1n respect of potential rebates required for customers identified as having dual
mnsurance cover

(b) Financial Services Compensation Scheme (‘FSCS’) Levy

This levy relates to the amount payable to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) in the event of the failure of
a company authorised by the Prudential Regulatory Authonty (PRA) and/or the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) The
FCA has until 31 March 2014 to finalise its levy in respect of its financial year 2013/14

it 15 not anticipated that any further levy will be raised for 2013/14 The contingent liabihty 1s estimated to be £10 663m for
the 2013 basis year The FSCS has 1ssued its Plan and Budget for 2014/15 and a provision of £1 362m 1n respect of this levy
15 held 1n these financial statements

Accruals
2013 2012
£000 £000
Accrued expenses 481 443
Total 481 443

All accruals are current habilities

In 2013 accruals of £0 481m (2012 £0 443m) have been reclassified as a separate line 1item on the balance sheet to align
with other group entities for the purpose of clearer presentation  Accruals were previously reported within other financal
habihities See note 21
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23.

Other financial habihities

2013 2012

£000 £000
Due to related parties 74,579 37,508
Insurance payables 11,542 18,632
Other payables 6,204 1,156
Other taxes payable 6,209 7,433
Total 98,534 64,729

All trade and other payables are current habihities

In 2013 accruals of £0 481m {2012 £0 443m) have been reclassified as a separate line item on the balance sheet to ahign
with other group entities for the purpose of clearer presentation Accruals were previously reported withun other financial

habilities  See note 20

Decrease 1n operating assets and liabilities

2013 2012
£000 £000
Decrease 1n operating assets
Intangible insurance assets 4,877 9,203
Financial assets
Loans and receivables 5,587 94,567
Net decrease in operating assets 10,464 103,770
Increase / {(decrease) in operating habilities
Insurance contract habilities (net) (15,714)  (23,220)
Provisions for other habihties and charges (255) 4,026
Financial lrabihities Other financial Liabihties 33,843  (14,601)
Net increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities 17,874 (33,795)
Net decrease in operating assets and habihties 28,338 69,975
Dividends paid
2013 2012
£000 £000
_——
Total dividends paid on equity shares 99,000 32,000

The Board of Directors approved total dividends payable to Lloyds Bank General Insurance Holdings Limited (formerly
Lloyds TSB General Insurance Holdings Limited) of £99m (£1 60 per share) during the year 1n respect of 2013 (2012 £32m
{£0 52 per share))
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Short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and sensitivities

(1) Processes used to determine key assumptions in respect of insurance and investment contracts

The methodology and assumptions used n relation to deterrming the bases of the eamed premium and claims provisioning
levels are derived for each individual underwnitten product and contained within the appropnate software programmes of the
in-house policy underwnting system  Assumptions are mntended to be neutral estimates of the most hkely or expected
outcome (‘best estimates’)

The levels, adequacies and assumptions used to determine these claims reserves are set out in the Calibration Working Group
(CWG) and Claims & Reserving Commuttee (C&RC) Reports

These reports from the Head of Acmanal and recommendations are formally reviewed by the Claims and Reserving
Committee on a regular basis

An analysis of methodology and assumptions n calculating technical reserves 1s shown below for each sigmficant product
class

(2) Key assumptions
(a) Household and domestic all nisks

Significant perils and losses factors include accidental damage, escape of water, subsidence, public liabihty and adverse
weather The reserving methodology and associated assumptions are set out below

Outstanding claims reserve (OCR)

The aim of the OCR review for household and domestic all risks 15 to generate a best estimate weighted average OCR using
various actuarial techniques including a chan ladder statistical projection method applied to past claims paid, case estimates
and claims velume data for each peril separately Consideration 1s also given to the impact any change n clauns processing
will have on the estimate  If considerable uncertainty exists, then an uncertainty provision will be identified and documented
within the reserving reports

Clamms incurred but not reported reserve (IBNR}

The aim of the IBNR review 1s to assess the appropriateness of the IBNR factors used to set the IBNR reserve To do this, a
chain ladder statistical projection method 1s applied to past clauns volume reported triangles

Major events such as storms or floods are treated separately using development patterns appropriate to that type of event In
addition, additional provisions are established for habslity and fire claims to reflect the additional volatility over and above
that seen 1n the available data

Unearned premium reserve (UPR)

The UPR 1s calculated using a daily allocaton method These are annual pohcies but the majonity of policyholders pay
premiums by monthly instalments and accordingly a substantial part of the asset backing the UPR 1s future monthly
premiums

(b) Creditor

Significant perils and loss factors mclude unemployment, morbidity, unterest rates and the UK economuc outlook generally
The vast majonty of financial loss business underwritten by the Company consists of loan protection covenng accident,
sickness and unemployment The reserving methodology and associated assumptions for loan protection are set out below

Outstanding claims reserve (OCR)

The OCR 1s calculated as the product of the number of active claims, the average durahon remamming and the monthly
repayment armount The average claim duration assumption 15 based on past experience of loan protection data adjusted for
the current economic conditions The adjustment was made on a judgemental basis, taking into account the most recent data
and economg predictions
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Short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change 1n assumptions and sensitivities (continued)
Claims tncurred but not reported reserve (IBNR)}

The IBNR 1s calculated in the same way as the OCR, though uses total duration

Unearned premium reserve (UPR}

Earned premiums are calculated on a basis that reflects the length of ume for which contracts have been 1n force and the
projected incidence of risk over the term of each contract

Unexpired risk reserve (URR)}

An unexpired nsk reserve (URR) 1s required to be established when the uneamed premium reserve belonging to an
identifiable segment of business 1s insufficient to cover the estimated cost of all future claims and expenses which will attach
to that unearned business

An analysis by segment was carried out and determined that an URR of £1 451m (2012 £2 442m}) 1n respect of the single
premium creditor business was required  This was due to the expectation that future claims expenence would deteriorate as a
result of anti-selection caused by the PPl mus-selling judicial review

(c¢) Claims development tables

The development of insurance liabilites provides a measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the ultimate value of
claims

The top half of each of the following tables below illustrates how the Company's estimate of total claims outstanding for
each accident year has changed at successive year-ends The bottom half of the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the
amount appearing in the balance sheet The accident year basis 15 considered the most appropriate for the business written by
the Company

Household and domestic all risks -gross

Accident year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Estimate of ultimate claims costs
- at end of accident year 161,951 174,685 139,803 174,854 175,471 826,764
- one year later 153,194 168,892 130,133 161,742 -
- two years later 138,663 164,937 125,763 - -
- three years later 137,344 165,705 - - -
- four years later 138,421 - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 138,421 165,705 125,763 161,742 175,471 767,102
Cumulative payments to date (136,349) (160,871) (119,607y  (148,477) (85,771) (651,075)
Liability recognised 1n the balance sheet 2,072 4,834 6,156 13,265 89,700 116,027
Liability in respect of prior years 2,854
Total gross iability included in the balance sheet 118,881

Household and domestic all nsks -net

Accident year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Estimate of ultimate claims costs
- at end of accident year 161,951 174,685 139,803 174,854 175,471 826,764
- one year later 153,194 168,892 130,133 161,742 - -
- two years later 138,663 164,937 125,763 - - -
- three years later 137,344 165,705 - - - -
- four years later 138,421 - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 138,421 165,705 125,763 161,742 175,471 767,102
Cumulative payments to date (136,349)  (160,871)  (119,607) (148,477) (85,771) (651,075)
Liability recogmised 1n the balance
sheet 2,072 4,834 6,156 13,265 89,700 116,027
Liability 1n respect of prior years 2,370
Total net hability included 1n the balance sheet 118,397
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Short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and sensitivities (continued)
{c} Claims development tables (continued}

As at the year ended 31 December 2013 the Company hmited its exposure to loss within insurance operations through
participation in retnsurance arrangements The household portfolio is protected through a catastrophe excess of loss
arrangement which operates across both Lloyds Banking Group General Insurance legal entities The reinsurance programme
was renewed on 1 July 2013 Amounts recoverable from reinsurers were estumated in a manner consistent with the
assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying pohcy benefits The purpose of a household excess of loss catastrophe
remsurance programme 1s to protect agamnst the adverse effects of large weather related events

The gross liability of £118 881m and net liability of £118 397m shown 1n the above tables exclude £5 882m of unallocated
claims handling expenses.

Creditor — gross and net

Accident year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Estimate of ultimate claims costs
- at end of accident year 99,120 70,832 44,112 18,343 9,270 241,677
- one year later 82,879 45386 24,500 14,268 - -
- two years later 75,871 41,773 24,454 - -
- three years later 69,211 41,885 - - - -
- four years later 67,489 - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 67,489 41,885 24,454 14,268 9270 157,366
Cumulative payments to date {66,069) (37,321) {20,892) (11,512) (2,923) (138,717)
Liability recogmised in the balance sheet 1,420 4,564 3,562 2,756 6,347 18,649
Liability 1n respect of prior years 16
Total habulity included in the balance sheet 18,665

The Company has net had any remnsurance cover i place for the current and preceding 5 years 1n respect of creditor
insurance business

The hability of £18 665m shown n the above table excludes £3 751m of unallocated claims handling expenses
Sensitivity analysis of claims habilities 15 included 1n note 2

Risk management

The principal activity of the Company s the undertaking of general insurance business tn the United Kingdom The Company
underwnites a range of general msurance products such as household and domestic all risks insurance, creditor insurance, pet
msurance and accident and health insurance Products are marketed pnimanly under the Lloyds Bank, Bank of Scotland and
Halhfax brands and sold predeminantly through the LBG network and corporate partnerships The Company also remsures
business with insurance entities external to the Company

The Company assesses the relative costs and concentrations of each type of risk through the Individual Capital Assessment
{(“ICA™) and Solvency II capital assessments and matenal issues are escalated to the Insurance Risk Commuttee and the
Insurance Executive Commuttee

This note summarises these rnisks and the way in which the Company manages them
Governance framework

The Company 1s part of LBG, which has established a nsk management function with responsibility for implementing the
LBG risk management framework within the Group

Responsibility for the setting and management of risk appetite and risk policy resides with the Board of each Group
company The Board manages nsks in hine with LBG and Insurance risk policics The Board has delegated operational
implementatien to the Insurance Executive Commuttee

The approach to nisk management aims to ensure that there 15 effective independent checking or “oversight” of key decisions
through the operaton of a “three lines of defence™ model The first line of defence 15 hne management, who have direct
accountability for nsk decisions The Risk function provides oversight and challenge and forms the second line of defence
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(b)

(b)

Risk management (continued)

Governance framew ork (continued)

Internal Audit constitutes the third line of defence, whose objective 1s to provide the required independent assurance to the
Audit Committee and the Board that nsks within the Company are recognised, monitored and managed within acceptable
parameters

An enterprise-wide risk management framework for the identification, assessment, measurement and management of risk 1s 1n
place The framework 15 1 line with LBG’s nsk management prnnciples and covers the full spectrum of nisks that the
Company 1s exposed to Under this framework, nisks are categonsed according to an approved LBG nisk language which has
been adopted by the Company This covers the principal risks faced by the Company, including the exposures to market,
msurance, credit, financial soundness and operational nsk The performance of the Company, s continuing ability to wrnite
business and the strategic management of the business depend on 1ts ability to manage these nsks

Policy owners, 1dentified from appropnate areas across the business, are responsible for drafiing the LBG and Insurance risk
pelicies, for ensuring that they remain up-to-date and for facilitating any changes These policies are subject to at least an
annual review, or earher if deemed necessary Limuts are prescribed wathin which those responsible for the day to day
management of the Company can take decisions Line management are required to follow prescnbed reporting procedures to
the bodies responsible for monitoring comphance with policy and controlling the risks

Rusk appetite

Risk Appetite 15 the amount and type of nisk that the Board 1s prepared to seek, accept or tolerate and 1s fully aligned to LBG
Strategy The Board has defined the methodology for the management of Risk Appetite and approved a set of Risk Appetite
Statements that cover Financial Risks (Strategic, Solvency and Capital, Earmings and Liquidity), Operational Risks, People
and Rusk Culwre, Conduct Risks and Regulatory Risks The Risk Appetite Statements set himuts for exposures to the key nisks
faced by the business

Experience aganst Risk Appetite 15 reported monthly to the Insurance Risk Commuttee, quarterly to the Insurance Risk
Oversight Commuttee, to the LBG Group Risk Committee and to the LBG Board Risk Cormrmttee, and bi-annually to the
Insurance Board Copies are also supphed regularly to Insurance’s regulators as part of the close and continuous relationship
Reporting focuses on ensunng, and demonstrating to the Insurance Board, and their delegate the Insurance Risk Oversight
Commuttee, that Insurance 15 run m line with approves Risk Appetite Any breaches of Risk Appetite require clear plans and
timescales for resolution

Financial risks

The Company 1s exposed to financial nisk through 1its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and msurance
liabilities In particular, the key financial risk 1s that investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations ansing
from its insurance contracts The most important components of financial risk are market risk, insurance risk, credit nisk and
financial soundness nsk

The Company manages these risks in a number of ways, including nsk appetite assessment and monitoring of capital
resource requirements The Company has a defined investment policy which sets out limuts on the Company’s exposure to its
mmvestments Investment management meetings are held regularly where the Company’s investments are reviewed Exposure
to wnvestments are monitored by the finance function n order to ensure comphance with intemnal and re¢levant external
regulatory limts for solvency purposes and to allow additional measures to be taken 1f lumits are breached

Financial assets and financial habilities are measured on an ongoing basis erither at fair value or at amortised cost The
summary of significant accounting policies (note 1) describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured and how
mcome and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recogmsed

The ttming of the unwind of the deferred tax assets and liabilities 1s dependent on the timing of the unwind of the temporary
timing differences, ansing between the tax bases of the assets and liabihties and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes, to which these balances relate

The sensitivity analyses given throughout this note are based on a change mn an assumption while holding aii other
assumptions constant unless stated otherwise In practice, this 1s unlikely to occur as changes in some of the assumptions may
be correlated, for example changes in interest rates and changes in market values The sensitivity analysis presented also
represents, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 7, management’s assessment of a reasonably possible alternative 1n
respect of each sensitivity, rather than worst case scenario positions unless stated otherwise
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Risk management (continued)

(1) Market risk

Market nisk 1s the risk of reduction 1n earnings and/or value from unfavourable market movements This nsk typically arises
from fluctuations in market mterest rates (interest rate nisk) and market prices {equity nsk), whether such changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual instrument or 1ts 1ssuer or factors affecting all instruments traded n the market

The Company’s objective in managing market risk 1s to maxwuuse returns from mvestments whilst ensuring regulatory
requirements are met and adequate financial secunty 15 maintained on an ongoing basis

The Company 1s exposed to market risk through 1ts portfoho of nvestments, the majonty of which are short term 1n nature
The Company categonises 1ts financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as follows

. Collective investment schemes unlisted mvestments which are authonsed and regulated by the FCA and fall under
the EU directive on Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities,

. Listed debt secunties ncludes sterhng denomimnated floating rate notes, and

. Unlisted debt secunties All classed as level 3, compnising asset backed secunties and covered bonds which are not

actively traded and are valued using a discounted cash flow model

An analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss according to their fair value hierarchy (as defined m note 1{c)) 1s
given below

As at 31 December 2013
Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Collective Investment Schemes — unhisted 326,683 - - 326,683
Debt secunties — unlisted - - 160,901 160,901
Total assets 326,683 - 160,501 487,584

As at 31 December 2012
Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £000 £060 £000

Collective Investment Schemes — unlisted 289,529 - - 289,529
Debt secunities —unlisted - - 178,461 178,461
Total assets 289,529 - 178,461 467,990

The unhsted debt secunties classified as Level 3 above are not actively traded and are valued using a discounted cash flow
model The valuation incorporates credit risk spreads, which are generally based on observable spreads of similar secunties,
plus a hqudity premuum  Assumptions are made about the expected life of the secunties, reflecting prepayment behaviour The
effect of applying reasonably possible alternative assumptions to the value of these unlisted debt secunties would be to
decrease the fair value by £2 571m or increase 1t by £2 655m

The table below shows movements 1n the assets measured at fair value based on valuation techniques for which any sigmificant
mput 1s not based on observable market data {(Level 3 only)

2013 2012
£000 £000
Balance at | January 178 461 -
Net gams recogmsed within net fair value gains on financial assets held at
fair value through profit or loss 1n the statement of comprehensive income 2,160 742
Purchases 29,935 179,778
Disposals (49,656) (2,059
Balance at 31 December 160,900 178,461
Total gans for the peniod included n the statement of comprehensive
mcome for assets held at 31 December 2,006 676
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Risk management (continued)

An additional source of market nisk 1s the msmatch between payout pattemns of habihities and the assets backing those
habilities However, this component 15 a minor source of risk for the Company because the majonty of assets as well as
habilities are of a short term nature

The market nisk 1n the mvestment portfohio 15 measured using ‘Value at Risk” (VaR) methodotogy VaR 15 defined as the
maximum loss over a given time horizon, with a defined low probability that the actual loss on the portfolio will be larger A
5% VaR with a one year time horizon 15 used to set the Company’s tolerance to market nsk A loss equal to VaR 1s the worst
case loss considered for the management of market nsk

The VaR calculation allows for dependencies between the values of investments in the portfolio Tts inputs mclude 15 years of
historic movements n the values of appropnate market indices and interest rates

The VaR for the Company as at 31 December 2013 was £20 051m (2012 £16 6m) The VaR has increased due to the impact
of purchasing unlisted debt secunties duning the year

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 18 the nisk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 1n
mterest rates and the shape of the yield curve Interest rate nsk in respect of the Company’s msurance contracts arise when

there 1s a mismatch n duration or yield between hiabilities and the assets backing those Liabilities

The Company underwrites predominantly short-term insurance habilies with durations of less than 5 years, which are not
directly sensitive to the level of market interest rates as they are undiscounted and contractually non-interest bearing

2013 2012
Impact on profit after tax and equity at Teporting date £m £m
23 basis pomnts increase 1n interest rates 11 03
25 basis points decrease in interest rates an ©3)

(2) Insurance risk

The nisk under any one nsurance contract 1s the possibility that the mnsured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of
the resulting claim By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk 1s random and therefore unpredictable

The principal nisk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts 1s that the actual claims payments exceed the carrying
amount of the msurance habilities This could occur because the frequency or seventy of claims 1s greater than estimated
Insurance events are random and the actual number of claims will vary from year to year from the estimate established using
statistical techniques When subsmitting a claim, proof will be needed The Company follows any principles set up by the
ABI and PRA 1n respect of handling claims Claims iformation 1s retained to help with the estimation of future claim
payments and rnisk pricing

Expenence shows that the larger the portfolio of sumilar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative vanability about the
expected cutcome will be In addition, a more diversified portfolio 15 Tess likely to be affected across the board by a change
in any subset of the portfolio  The Company has developed 1ts insurance underwriting strategy to ensure that within each of
its nisk categornes sufficiently large populations of risks are achieved to reduce the variability of the expected outcome

(1) Household and domestic all risks
(a) Frequency and seventy of claims

For household and domestic all nsks mnsurance contracts, climatic changes appear to be giving nise to more frequent and
severe extreme weather events and their consequences Underwnting limits are in place to enforce appropnate nisk selection
cntena For example, the Company can charge a premium appropriate to the risk presented, decline to underwnte certain
applications at sale, impose policy terms and conditions or higher excesses and, in the majonity of cases, has the right not to
renew individual policites The Company also has the night te reject the payment of a fraudulent claim Insurance contracts
also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (1e subrogation)

37




LLOYDS BANK GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED (204373) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

25

Risk management {(continued)

The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal and also has the ability to impose excesses These contracts are
underwrnitten by reference to the replacement value of the properties and contents msured  Claim payment hmits are always
mcluded for contents insurance to cap the amount payable on occurrence of the insured event  Costs of rebuilding properties
or replacement of, or indemnity for, contents, are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies The
greatest likelihood of significant losses on these contracts arises from storm, fire, flood damage, freeze and subsidence The
Company has remsurance cover for catastrophes to limit losses m any one year from large single events The maximum loss
for a single event up to £595 2m1s £135 2m across Lloyds Banking Group General Insurance (2012 £676 3m, £92 9m)

The insurance nsk ansing from these contracts 1s not concentrated 1n any of the regions 1n the UK in which the Company
operates, and there 15 a balance between buildings and contents 1n the overall portfolio,

{b) Sources of uncertainty 1n the estimation of future claim payments

Household and domestic all msks claims are analysed separately for each pen] The development of accumulations of weather
claims 1n a single catastrophic event 1s analysed separately The shorter settlement peniod for non-subsidence/hability claims
allows the Company to achieve a higher degree of certainty about the estimated cost of these claims, and relatively smatl
Incurred but not Reported (‘IBNR’) reserve 1s held at year-end However, the longer time needed to assess the emergence of
a subsidence or liability claim makes the estimation process more uncertain for these claims

{u) Creditor
(a) Frequency and severity of claims

Sigmficant penls and nisk factors include unemployment, morbidity, interest rates and the UK economic outlook generally
The majonity of financial loss business underwritten by the Company s payment protection, which has accident, sickness and
unemployment as 1ts main perils

The claim amount paid 15 fixed at the level of repayment and 1s capped for a maximum duration for most contracts There are
waiting and exclusion periods during which no claim will be accepted In addition, 1n the case of sickness, any pre-existing
health conditions will not be covered

The nsurance nisk arising from these contracts 15 not concentrated in any of the regtons in the UK in which the Company
operates A credit scoring system and procedures are 1n place to approve loans on which msurance will be offered

Unemployment claims during the year have continued to fall from their peak in 2009, though still remain marginally higher
than pnor to the recession These changes coupled with changes to internal processes to cope with increased demand have
given nise to distorted reporting and payment patterns so the Company has had to apply more judgement than usual to reflect
that history 1s not as predictive in current circumstances In addition the Company expects that the average duration of
recurring claims will continue to be sensitive to prevailing economic conditions and the stressful conditions of the recession
will also produce a knock-on effect on the duration of sickness claims so an allowance has been made to allow for this in the
reserves

(b) Sources of uncertainty 1n the estirnation of future claim payments

The Company estimation processes reflect all the factors that mfluence the amount and timing of cash flows from these
contracts The shorter settlement peniod for these claims would normally allow the Company to achieve a higher degree of
certainty about the estimated cost of claims but as stated above there remamns greater uncertamty this year even as claims
reduce, however, there 1s still a relatively small IBNR held at year-end

To reduce the uncertanty the Company has been modelling national economic data, notably unemployment inflows and therr
relationship to creditor claims, as well as a detailed analysis of claim transitional probabilities This latter data has been
showing a slight decrease in the proportion of claimants transitioning to later claim duration periods

The Company ceased writing new creditor business m 2010, consequently the book 15 now m run-off which m itself
establishes an additional source of uncertainty n analysing the behaviours of a dimimishing book aganst a histoncally stable
portfolio

38




LLOYDS BANK GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED (204373) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO TIHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

25,

Risk management (continued)

() Unexpired risk reserve

An unexpired nsk reserve (URR) 1s required to be established when the uneamed prermmum reserve belonging to an
identifiable segment of business 1s msufficient to cover the esumated cost of all future claims and expenses which wili attach
to that uneamed business

An analysis by segment was carmed out and determined that an URR of £1 451m (2012 £2 442m) n respect of the single
premium creditor business was required This was due to the expectation that future claims expenience would deteriorate as a
result of anti-selection caused by the PPI mus-selling judicial review

(3) Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, as a result of the failure of
the party with whom the Company has contracted to meet 1ts obligations

Investment counterparty default risk arises primarily from holding invested assets to meet habihities, and remnsurer default
credit sk pnimanly anses from exposure to reinsurers

Management considers that the Company’s only sigmificant potential credit nsk exposures are from remnsurance and financial
assets held at fair value through profit or loss Adequate and effective procedures are in place to mitigate these exposures and
all the other sources of credit risk identified by the business Credit nisk exposure from msurance recervables 1s not considered
to be significant, as the risk 15 diversified across a large volume of pohcyholders for all products and the amount of unpaid
premrums at the balance sheet date 15 not sigmficant A provision for doubtful debt 1s recogmised when payments due from
policyholders have not been recerved for at least a month

The Company’s nisk transfer policy addresses the management of reinsurance credit nsk and 1s authonsed by the Insurance
Finance Capital Committee (IFCC) Only reinsurers with a minmmum credit rating of “A-" will be accepted The Company
also requires a “special termunation clause™ in all contracts allowing a reinsurer to be replaced mid-term, in the event their
security rating 1s downgraded below an acceptable level duning the penod of the reinsurance contract

Remnsurance claims recovenes management information 15 supplied to the actuanal function by the reinsurance broker The
Company’s actuarial function moniters the status of claims made on remsurance policies

The Company’s investment policy sets rules hmiting exposure to concentrations of risk as a result of aggregation of exposure
to any single counterparty Setung limits mitigates such credit nsk exposure and also ensures compliance with regulatory
requirements Surplus funds are invested by utihsing fund managers and their adherence to the exposure hmit rules 1s
monitored regularly by the Insurance Shareholder Investment Management Commattee (ISIM) Credit default risk 1s the most
significant financial risk, but this 1s mitigated by a very cautious approach to counterparty nisk

The table below analyses financial assets subject to credit nsk using Moody’s or equivalent
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss:

As at 31 December 2013

Total AAA AATA B Not Rated

£006 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets ansing from remnsurance contracts held 6,299 - 6,299 - -
Loans and receivables 237,845 - 2,071 2,761 233,013
Debt secunties — unhsted 160,901 160,901 - - -
Collective investment schemes — unlhisted 326,683 266,538 - 60,145
Cash and cash equivalents 67,591 65,860 1,731 J
Total 799,319 493,299 10,101 2,761 293,158

Included 1n the loans and receivables balance above 15 £0 546m 1n respect of assets that were 3-12 months past due but not
impaired at the reporting date (2012 £0 68%m, 3-12 months)
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Risk management (continued)
The table below analyses financial assets subject to credit nisk using Moody's or equivalent
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss:

As at 31 December 2012

Total AAA AAJA B Not Rated

£000 £000 £000 £0090 £000
Assets ansing from remsurance contracts held 10,352 - 10,352 - -
Loans and Receivables 243,316 - 464 1,374 241,478
Debt securities —unhisted (note 7) 178,461 178,461 - - -
Collective investment schemes — unlisted 289,529 231,385 - - 58,144
Cash and Cash Equivalents 128,921 59,570 69,351 - -
Total 850,579 469,416 80,167 1,374 299,622

(4) Concentration risk

Credit concentration risk

Credt concentration risk relates to the madequate diversification of credit nsk

Credit risk 1s managed through the setting and regular review of counterparty credit and concentration limits on asset types
which are considered more likely to lead to a concentration of credit sk For other asset types, such as investments 1n funds
falling under the UCITS Directive, no lumits are prescribed as the nisk of credit concentration 15 deemed to be immaterial This

policy supports the approach mandated by the PRA for regulatory reporting

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Company did not have any significant concentration of credit sk with a
single counterparty or groups of counterparties where limits apphied

Liquidity concentration risk

Liquidity concentration nsk arises where the Company 18 unable to meet 1ts obligations as they fall due or do so only at an
excessive cost, due to over-concentration of investments in particular financial assets or classes of financial asset

As most of the Company’s invested assets are diversified across a range of financial assets, ncluding diversified funds falling
under the UCITS Darective, 1t 1s unhkely that a material concentration of hquidity could anse

This 15 supplemented by active hquidity management i the Company, to ensure that even under stress conditions the
Company has sufficient hquidity as required to meet its obhigations This 15 delegated by the Board to and momitored through
the IFCC

(5) Financial soundness risk
Financial soundness risk covers the risk of financial farlure, reputational loss or loss of eamings and/or value ansing from a

lack of hquidity, funding or capital and/or the nappropnate recording, reporting or disclosure of financial, taxation and
regulatory information
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Risk management (continued)
(1) Financial and prudential regulatory reporting, tax and disclosure risks

The Company 1s exposed to the risk that policies and procedures are not sufficient to mamtain adequate books and records to
support statutory, reguiatory and tax reporting and to prevent and detect financial reporting fraud

The Company has developed procedures to ensure that comphance with both the current and potential future requirements are
understood and that policies are aligned to its risk appetite The Company has cstablished a system of internal controls the
objective of which 15 to prowvide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded and undertaken in accordance with
delegated authonties that permit the preparation and disclosure of financial statements, regulatory reporting and tax retums n
accordance with IFRSs, statutory and regulatory requirements

The Company undertakes a programme of work designed to support an annual assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls over financial reporting, to 1dentify tax hiabihities and to assess emerging legisiation and regulation

(n) Liquidity risk

Liqudity nisk 1s the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet 1ts financial commitments as they
fall due, or can secure them only at an excessive cost Liquidity risk may result from either the inability to sell financial assets
quickly at their fair vaiues, or from an 1nsurance hability falling due for payment earhier than expected, or from the mability to
generate cash inflows as anticipated

The mam objective of the Company’s liquidity nisk policy 15 to ensure that all funds within the Company that serve to fulfil
habilities are available in sufficiently liquid form to settle liabilities as and when they fall due Liquidity nisk 1s considered to
be small, as the Company pnimanly holds financial assets for which there 1s a liquid market and that are readily saleable to
meet lquidity needs together with short term cash deposits which are viewed as readily available at short notice The Company
also holds unlisted debt secunties which have matuntes of lenger term duration (3-5 years maximum) The Company
routinely reviews 1ts capital and liquidity position and only nvests excess hquidity (where balances exceed a level required to
settle msurance claims and other creditors including an internal buffer} in longer term assets As such the assets do not carry
any significant liquidity nsk

For sharcholder funds, liquidity risk 1s managed 1n line with the Insurance Liquidity Risk Policy and the wider LBG Funding
and Liquidity Risk Policy

The following table analyses the Company’s msurance and financial habilihies into relevant matunity groupings The analysis of
msurance liabihties 15 an estimated maturity analysis of the amount recogmised 1n the balance sheet as perntted by IFRS 4 For
financal hiabilities, the groupings are based on the penod remaining at the balance sheet to the contractual matunty date The
amounts disclosed tn the table are undiscounted

As at 31 December 2013

Upto3 3-12 More than

Total months months 1-2 years 2 years

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Short-term nsurance contracts 153,227 26,737 36,289 57,275 32,926

Other financial habilities and accruals 99,015 99,015 - - -

Total 252,242 125,752 36,289 57,275 32,926
As at 31 December 2012

Upto3 3-12 More than

Total months months 1-2 years 2 years

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Short-term nsurance contracts 158,933 61,854 65,611 19,018 12,450

Other finaneial habiities and accruals 65,172 65,172 - - -

Total 224,105 127,026 65,611 19,018 12,450

Short-term insurance contracts include clamms reported and loss adjustment expenses, claims mcurred but not reported and
unexpired risk reserve as disclosed i note 17
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Risk management (continued)
{m) Capita) Risk
Capital nisk 15 defined as the nsk that

the Company has insufficient capital to meet 1ts regulatory capital requirements,

the Company has insufficient capital to provide a stable resource to absorb all losses up to a confidence level defined
1n the nisk appetite,

L the Company loses reputational status by having capital that 1s regarded as mappropnate, either in quantity, type or
distnbution, and/or
L the capital structure 1s inefficient

The Company 1s regulated by the PRA The PRA specifies the mimimum amount of regulatory capital that must be held by
the Company

Under the PRA rules, the Company must hold regulatory capital in excess of the higher of

. the Pillar 1 amount, known as the Mmimum Capital Requirement {MCR), the calculation for which 1s set out 1n the
PRA rules, and
. the Pillar 2 amount, known as Individual Capital Guidance, which 18 denved from an economic capital assessment

undertaken by each regulated company, which 1s reviewed by the PRA

The mmmimum required capital must be maintained at all imes throughout the year These capital requirements and the
capital available to meet them are regularly estimated 1n order to ensure that capital maintenance requirements are being met

In addition capital requirements and capital available under Solvency II are estimated 1n order to ensure that Solvency II
capital requirements will be met when Solvency 11 1s introduced

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are

. to have sufficient capital to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that 1t can continue to
provide returns for the shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,
to comply with the insurance capital requirements set out by the PRA 1n the UK, and
when capital 15 needed, to require an adequate return to the shareholder by pricing mmsurance contracts according to
the level of risk associated with the business written

The capital management strategy 15 such that the single integrated insurance business (comprising Scottish Widows Group
(“SWG)Y and 1its subsidianies, inchuding the Company) will hold capital in line wath the stated risk appetite for the business,
which 15 to be able to withstand a one 1n ten year stress event without breaching the capital requirements At SWG level 1t 1s
intended that all surplus capital above that required to absorb a one 1n ten year stress event will be distnbuted to LBG

The Company’s capital comprises all components of equity, movements in which are set out in the statement of changes in
equity

The table below sets out the regulatory capital and the required camital heid at 31 December 1n each year on a Pillar 1 basis
The current year information 1s taken from the final PRA return

203 2012
£000 £000

i
Available capital 233,796 252,020
Caputat requirement (MCR) 92,533 92,533
Regulatory surplus 141,263 159,487

All munimum regulatory requirements were met during the year
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Risk management (continued)
Operational risk

The Company 15 exposed to the nisk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from
inadequate or fatled internal processes and systems, or from people related or external events

There are a number of categones of operational rnisk
Conduct risk

The risk of regulatory censure and/or a reduction n earmings/value, through financial or reputational loss, from inappropriate
or poor customer outcomes Associated risks include poor product design and development, customer advice, customer
service and customer complamt handling

Customer treatment and how LBG as a whole manages 1ts customer relationships affects all aspects of the Group’s operations
and 1s closely ahgned with achievement of LBG’s strategic vision to be the best bank for customers There remains a high
level of scrutiny regarding the treatment of customers by financial nstututions from regulatory bodies, the press and
pohticians

People risk

The nsk of reducttons in eamings and/or value through financial or reputational loss ansing from meffectively leading
colleagues responsibly and proficiently, managing people resource, supporting and developing colleague talent, or meeting
regulatory obligatrons reiated to our people

Financial crime and secunity risk

Financial crime nisk covers the risk of reduction i earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, associated
with financial crime and failure to comply with related regulatory obligations, these losses may include censure, fines or the
cost of liigation This includes risks associated with fraud and bribery, and obligations related to money laundering,
sanctions and counter terrorism

Secunty nisk relates to the nsk of reductions 1n eamings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulting from
theft of or damage to the Group’s assets, the loss, corruption, misuse or theft of the Group’s information assets or threats or
actual harm to the Group's people This also includes risks relating to terrorist acts, other acts of war, geopolitical, pandemic
or other such events

Orgamsational infrastructure and change risk

Organisational nfrastructure nsk covers the nsk of reductions in earnings andfor value, through financial or reputational
loss, resulting from poor mternally facing business processes at a Group, divisional or company level Qrganisational
infrastructure mn this context embraces the structures, systems and processes that provide direction, control and accountability
for the enterprise Change risk comprises the risk of potential loss from change initiatives fathng to deliver to requirements,
budget or imescale, failing to implement change effectively or failling to realise desired benefits -

Politrcal risk and uncertainties -

Political nsk 1s the nsk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value through financial loss from a changing political
environment In the absence of a defimtive, agreed and fully-implemented selution to the Evro zone crisis there continues to
be some risk that ongoing economic uncertamty m Europe and the availability of credit could cause a return to recession
the United Kingdom and Ireland

A Scottish Independence referendum 1s due to be held 1n 2014 The impact of a ‘ves’ vote in favour of Scottish independence
15 uncertain The outcome could have a matenal impact on cempliance costs, the tax position, and cost of funding for

the Company Key nungating actions include momitoring and assessment of the potential impact on the Company’s business
and impact on customers of a vote in favour of Scottish independence -

Supplier management risk

The nisk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulting from all activity related to the
agreement and management of services with other parties
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26.

27

Risk management (continued)
IT systems risk

The risk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through all activity related to the development, delivery and maintenance of
effective IT solutions

The Directors have approved a nisk framework and monitor the effective operation of this across the Group
Legal and regulatory risk

Legal and regulatory nisk 15 the nsk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from failling
to comply with the applicable laws, regulations or codes

The volume of actual and expected regulatory change remains high and work 1s ongong to review, assess and embed new
regulatory requirements into day-to-day operational and business practices across the Company

Regulators are nterested in protecting the nights of the policyholders and ensuring that the Company 1s satisfactonly
managmg affairs for the benefit of the policyholders Regulators are also keen to ensure that the Company maintains
appropriate solvency levels to meet unforeseen habilities ansing from reasonably foreseeable economic shocks or natural
disasters  As such, the Company 1s subject to regulatory requirements which prescnibe and impose certain restrictive
Provisions

The Group momitor and manage all legal and regulatory risks closely and have regulator interaction with the regulators
Contingencies and commitments

Except as stated m note 19, in the opmion of the directors, there were no material contingent liabilities or commitments
requinng disclosure (2012 £mil)

Related party transactions

The 1mmediate parent undertaking 1s Lloyds Bank General Insurance Holdings Limited (previously “Lloyds TSB General
Insurance Holdings Limited™)

The parent undertaking which 1s the parent undertaking of the smallest group to consolidate these financial statements 1s
Lloyds Bank plc Copies of the consolidated annual report and financial statements of Lloyds Bank plc may be cbtained from
Insurance Secretanat, 69 Morrison Street, Edinburgh EH3 8YF

The ulumate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Lloyds Banking Group plc, which 1s the parent undertaking of the
largest group to consohdate these financial statements Copies of the consohdated annual report and financial statements of
Lioyds Banking Group plc may be obtained from Lloyds Banking Group’s head office at 25 Gresham Street, London EC2V
THN or downloaded via www lloydsbankinggroup com

The Company’s related parties mnclude parents, fellow subsidianes, pension schemes of the Company's ultimate parent
company and the Company’s key management personnel Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibihty for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, which 15 determined to be the Company’s
Directors
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Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions in the Year

Qutstanding Balance at 31

December
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
M

Relationship
Parent Companies
Dividend pard 99,000 32,000 - -
Holdings in collective investment schemes - 3,869 3,364
Cash and cash equivalents and Interest Income 145 2,912 1,731 69,343
Group rehef for income tax - - 22,481 73,133
Fellow Group subsidiaries.
Investment mcome m assets held at fair value 185 30 266,538 231,385
Commission and amounts payable 145,454 92,952 - -
Services of key management 408 585 - -
Investment management fees 341 469 - -
Other management services 86,663 84,283 60,929 22,563
Cash and cash equivalents and interest income 311 80 65,860 59,570

In 2013, this table has been reformatted to abgn with other group entities for the purpose of clearer presentation

Transactions between the Company and key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planming, directing and controlling the

activities of the Company which, for the Company, are the Company’s Directors

Transactions between the key management personnel of the Company and parties related to them as defined by TAS 24 are as

follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 320 483
Post-employment benefits 9 27
Share-based payments 80 75
Termination benefits - 32
Total 409 617

Certain members of key management in the Company, including the highest paid director, provide services to other
companies within the Lloyds Banking Group In such cases, for the purposes of this note, figures have been included based
on an apportionment to the Company of the total compensation earned

No retirement benefits are accruing to Directors and key management personnel (2012 rul) under defined benefit pension

schemes Six Directors and key management personnel (2012 fifteen) are paying 1nto a defined contnbution scheme
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(i)

Related-party transactions (continued)
Transactions between the Company and key management personnel (continued)
Detail regarding the highest paid Director 15 as follows

Detail regarding the highest paid director

2013 2012
£000 £000
Apportioned aggregate emoluments 50 91
Contnbutions paid to money purchase pension schemes 2 13

The highest paid Director did not exercise share options 1n 2013 {2012 mil) but was granted shares in respect of qualifying
service during the year This was also the case in the prior year These have been disclosed 1n the LBG consolidated financial
staternents

Other Transactions
HM Treasury

In January 2009, HM Treasury became a related party of the Company followng its subscription for ordinary shares in LBG, the
Company's ultimate parent company, issued under a placing and open offer  As at 31 December 2013, HM Treasury helda 32 7
percent (2012 39 2 per cent) interest in LBG’s ordinary share capital and, consequently, HM Treasury remained a related party of
the Company throughout 2012

There were no matenal transactions between the Company and HM Treasury during the year (2012 none) that were not made in
the ordinary course of business or that are unusual in their nature or conditions In addition, the Company has entered into
transactions with HM Treasury on an arm's length basis including, but not exclusively 1n relation to, the payment of corporation
tax, employment tax, and value added tax

Standards and nterpretations effective in 2013
iFRS 12 “Diusclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 requires an entity to disclose information that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the namre of, and
nisks associated with, 1ts interests 1n other entities and the effects of those interests on 1ts financial positton, financial
performance and cash flows These changes relate only to disclosure and have had no overall impact on the financial results
or position of the Company

The standard has resulted 1n an ncrease n disclosure, 1 particular on structured entiies The Company has interests in
unconsohdated structured enuhes ansing from investment 1n collective mvestment schemes The Company has expanded the
disclosures about interests 1n unconsolidated structured entities to reflect the new disclosure requirements, as set out 1 note
14

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

IFRS 13 defines fair value, sets out a framework for measunng fair value and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements It apples to IFRSs that require or permit far value measurements or disclosures about fair value
measurements This standard has not had a material impact on the financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures™ — ‘Offsetting Financial Assets and Financal Liabilibes’

The amendments to IFRS 7 require an entity to disclose information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the
effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on the entity’s balance sheet These changes relate only to disclosure and
have had no overall impact on the financial results or position of the Company This standard has not had a material impact
on the financial statements

6




LLOYDS BANK GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED (204373)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

28

29

()

Standards and interpretations effective in 2013 (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” — ‘Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income’

The amendments to JAS | require entities to group 1tems presented 1n other comprehensive income on the basis of whether
they are potentially reclassified to profit or loss subsequently These changes relate only to presentation and have had no
overall impact on the financial results or posiion of the Company This standard has not had a matenal impact on the
financial statements

Details of those IFRSs pronouncements which will be relevant to the Company but which were not effective at 31 December
2013 and which have not been apphed n prepanng these financial statements are given in note 29

Future accounting developments
The following pronouncements may have a sigmificant effect on the Company's financial statements but are not applicable for

the year ending 31 December 2013 and have not been appled n preparing these financial statements Except as disclosed
below, the full impact of these accounting changes 1s being assessed by the Company

Pronouncement Nature of change TASB effective date
IFRS 9, ‘Financial Not yet deterrmned
instruments” '#2 Replace those parts of TAS 39 ‘Fimancial Instruments

Recogmition and Measurement’ relating to the classification,
measurement and derecogmition of financial assets and
liabilities  IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified
mto two measurement categories, fair value and amortised
cost, on the basis of the objectives of the entity’s business
model for managing 1ts financial assets and the contractual
cash flow charactenstics of the instrument, and eliminates
the available-for-sale financial asset and held-to-matunity
investment categories 1n IAS 39 The requirements for
derecognition are broadly unchanged from TAS 39 The
standard also retamns most of the [AS 39 requirements for
financial habilities except for those designated at fair value
through profit or loss whereby the part of the fair value
change atinbutable to the entity’s own credit risk 1s recorded
in other comprehensive income

Amendments to [AS 32
"Financial Instruments
Presentation” —
‘Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities’

IFRIC 21 “Levies” !

Inserts application gmdance to address mnconsistencies
identified 1n applying the offsetting critena used in the
standard Some gross settlernent systems may quahfy for
offsetting where they exnbit certain charactenstics akin to
net settlement

The interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for
levies if the hiability 1s wathin the scope of IAS37 Alevy s
mmposed on entittes by governments m accordance with
legislation, but excludes those that are in the scope of other
standards, such as income taxes, and fines and penalties
from breaches of legislation

Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014

Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014

! At the date of ths report, these pronouncements are awarting EUJ endorsement

2IFRS 9 1s the standard which will replace TAS 39 Further changes to IFRS 9 are expected deahng with impairment of
financial assets measured at amortised cost, which will be based on expected rather than incurred credit losses, and hmited
amendments to classification and measurement which include the mtroduction of a third measurement category, fair value
through other comprehensive income  Until the standard 1s complete, 1t 1s not pessible to determme the overall impact of the
standard on the financial statements
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Post balance sheet event

In February 2014 a collateralised loan agreement was signed by the Board authonsmng a collateralised loan of £100m to a
related party In March 2014, the Company made a loan of £100m to a related party against which collateral 1s held The
collateral includes asset backed securities and covered bonds with fair value of at least 130% of the cash lent Collateral
amounts held are not recognised as assets
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